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STATE OF MICHIGAN
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF INGHAM

GRACIE WEBSTER and
VERONICA THOMAS,
Plaintiffs,
Vs Case No. }g— :B(-)" C }
Hon.
THE STATE OF MICHIGAN; CL'NTON CANADY ”I

RICHARD SNYDER, as Governor
of the State of Michigan; and
ANDY DILLON, as Treasurer of
the State of Michigan,

Defendants.

JOHN R. CANZANO (P30417)

McKNIGHT, McCLOW, CANZANO, \
SMITH & RADTKE, P.C. Uiiges = _
Attorneys for Plaintiffs : w
400 Galleria Officentre, Suite 117

Southfield, M1 48034

248-354-9650

jcanzano@michworklaw.com

A civil action between these parties or
other parties arising out of the transaction
or occurrence alleged in the Complaint has
been previously filed in this Court,
where it was given docket number 13-729-CZ&_
and was assigned 1o Judge Aquilina.
The action remains pending.

VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

NATURE OF ACTION

1. This action seeks a declaratory judgment that the “Local Financial Stability and

Choice Act,” 2012 PA 436, MCL 141.1541 et seq (“PA 436") is unconstitutional and in violation of

e

13-53846-swr Doc 519-5 Filed 08/19/13 Entered 08/19/13 23:55:20 Page 2 of 10();\)/ Qi<



Article IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution because PA 436 permits accrued pension benefits
to be diminished or impaired by bankruptcy proceedings in direct contravention of the Constitution.
This action also seeks a preliminary and/or final injunction enjoining the Governor and/or the State
Treasurer from authorizing a bankruptcy proceeding permitting an unconstitutional diminishment or

impairment of accrued pension benefits under PA 436.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. Plaintiff Gracie Webster is a retiree from the City of Detroit. She retired in 2000 and
is receiving a pension benefit under the City of Detroit's General Retirement System Pension Plan.
She resides in Detroit and is a citizen of the State of Michigan.

3. Plaintiff Veronica Thomas is an employee of the City of Detroit. She has worked for
the City for 17 years. She is a participant in the City of Detroit's General Retirement System Pension
Plan. Although she has not yet retired, based on her years of service Plaintiff Thomas has earned the
right to an accrued vested pension benefit under the terms of the pension plan.

4. Defendant State of Michigan is a governmental entity and sovereign state of the
United States, retaining all powers reserved to it under the 10"™ Amendment to the United States
Constitution.

5. Defendant Richard Snyder is the Governor of the State of Michigan acting in his
official capacity.

6. Defendant Andy Dillon is Treasurer of the State of Michigan acting in his official
capacity.

7. The Governor may delegate his duties under Section 9 of PA 436, MCL 141.1549 to
the State Treasurer.

8. This court has jurisdiction under MCL 600.6419(4), which provides for the
jurisdiction of circuit courts in proceedings for declaratory or equitable relief against the State, and
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MCL 600.605, which provides original jurisdiction in the circuit courts.
9. Venue is proper in this court under MCL 600.1621(a), because Defendants conduct
business in Ingham County.

COUNT I: DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

PA 436 Is Unconstitutional Because It Permits Accrued Pension Benefits To Be
Diminished Or Impaired In Direct Violation Of Article IX, Section 24 Of The
Michigan Constitution

10.  Article IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution provides in pertinent part:

The accrued financial benefits of each pension plan and retirement
system of the state and its political subdivisions shall be a contractual
obligation thereof which shall not be diminished or impaired
thereby.

11.  PA 436 was enacted by the Michigan Legislature on December 28, 2012 and became
effective March 28, 2013.

12.  Among the purposes of PA 436, as stated in its preamble, are to “prescribe remedial
measures to address a financial emergency within a local unit of government;” “to prescribe the
powers and duties of an emergency manager for a local unit of government;” and “to provide a
process by which a local unit of government . . . may file for bankruptcy.”

13. On March 14, 2013, Defendant Snyder appointed Kevyn Orr as Emergency Financial
Manager for the City of Detroit, pursuant to 1990 PA 72, MCL 141.1201 et seq ("PA 72"). PA 436
is a successor statute to, and expressly repeals, PA 72.

14.  Pursuant to Sec 9(10) of PA 436, MCL 141.1549(10), Kevyn Orr, as an emergency
financial manager appointed under formler 1990 PA 72 “and serving immediately prior to the
effective date of this act, shall be considered an emergency manager under this act [PA 436] and
shall continue under this act to fulfill his or her powers and duties.”

15.  Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11 USC §§901 ef seq, provides a process by
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which a municipality may file for bankruptcy and become a debtor under Chapter 9 in federal
bankruptcy court.

16.  However, in order to protect state sovereignty and in recognition of federalism
principles under the 10" Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code
prohibits municipalities from filing for bankruptcy unless the municipality “is specifically
authorized, in its capacity as a municipality or by name, to be a debtor under such chapter by State
law, or by a governmental officer or organization empowered by State law to authorize such entity to
be a debtor under such chapter.” Absent such authorization, federal bankruptcy courts have no
jurisdiction under Chapter 9 over a municipality as a debtor. 11 USC §109(c)(2). See Ashton v
Cameron County Water Improvement Dist No 1,298 US 513; 56 S Ct 892; 80 L Ed 1309 (1936);
and United States v Bekins, 304 US 27, 58 S Ct 811; 82 L. Ed 1137 (1938).

17.  Section 18 of PA 436, MCL 141.1558, specifically authorizes a local unit of
government to become a debtor in a Chapter 9 bankruptcy proceeding if the emergency manager for
the local government recommends to the Governor and the State Treasurer that the local government
be authorized to proceed under Chapter 9, and if the Governor approves the recommendation by
informing the emergency manager and State Treasurer in writing of his decision.

18.  PA 436 nowhere requires that in considering whether to approve an emergency
manager’s recommendation to proceed under Chapter 9, the Governor shall not approve such
recommendation if accrued pension benefits may be diminished or impaired in violation of Article
IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution.

19.  Accordingly, because PA 436 does not prohibit a municipality from proceeding under
Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code if accrued pension benefits may be unconstitutionally
diminished or impaired , PA 436 is unconstitutional on its face in violation of Article IX Section 24

of the Michigan Constitution.
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20.  Section 11 of PA 436, MCL 141.1551, provides that “an emergency manager shall
develop and may amend a written financial operating plan for the local government [and that] [t]he
financial and operating plan shall provide for . . . [t]he timely deposit of required payments to the
pension fund for the local government or in which the local government participates.”

21. On May 12, 2013, Emergency Manager Orr issued a financial and operating plan
pursuant to Section 11 of PA 436. (Available at www.freep.com/assets/freep/pdf/C4205233512.pdf.)
The plan does not schedule the “timely deposit of required payments” to the pension funds as
required by Section 11 of PA 436, but instead notes that payments have been deferred to manage a
liquidity crisis.

22. On June 14,2013, Emergency Manager Orr issued a “Proposal for Creditors” in which
he presents various restructuring options. (Available at http://www.freep.com/assets/freep/pdf/
C4206913614.pdf.) Nowhere in this document does Emergency Manager Orr indicate any intent to
comply with Article IX Sec 24 of the Michigan Constitution. Instead, in direct coniravention of the
Michigan Constitution, the proposal expressly states that “there must be significant cuts in accrued,
vested pension amounts for both active and currently retired persons.”

23.  Emergency Manager Orr has publicly threatened, in a June 14 interview with the
Detroit Free Press Editorial Board, that vested pension benefits will be abrogated in a Chapter 9
proceeding authorized by the Governor pursuant to PA 436, and that any state law protecting vested
pension benefits is “not going to protect” retirees or employees with vested pension benefits in
bankruptey court. (See www.freep.com/article/20130616/OPINION05/306160052/kevyn-orr-detroit-
emergency-manager-creditors-fiscal-crisis.)

24.  Article IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution is such a state law, which

Emergency Manager Orr has asserted will “not . . . protect” vested pension benefits.
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25. Under PA 436, the only way Emergency Manager Orr could impose his desired
“significant cuts in accrued, vested pension amounts for both active and currently retired persons” is
through a Chapter 9 bankruptcy filing.

26. Plaintiffs are entitled to a declaratory judgment that PA 436 is unconstitutional under
Article IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution because PA 436 does not prohibit the Governor
from authorizing a Chapter 9 bankruptcy filing which threatens to unconstitutionally diminish or
impair the Plaintiffs' accrued pension benefits, and a final judgment ordering that Defendant Snyder
and/or Defendant Dillon not authorize a Chapter 9 filing which threatens to diminish or impair
accrued pension benefits in violation of the Michigan Constitution.

217. This case presents an actual controversy entitling Plaintiffs to a declaratory judgment
because the facts stated above indicate " an adverse interest necessitating the sharpening of the issues
raised.” Lansing School Education Ass ‘nv Lansing Bd of Educ, 487 Mich 349, 372 n20; 792 NW2d
686 (2010), quoting Associated Builders and Contractors v Dep 't of Consumer and Indus Servs Dir,
472 Mich 117, 126; 693 NW2d 374 (2005). Plaintiffs are entitled to a declaratory judgment here “to
obtain adjudication of rights before an actual injury occurs [and] to settle a matter before it ripens
into a violation of the law . . .” Rose v State Farm Mut Auto Ins Co, 274 Mich App 291, 294; 732
NW2d 160 (2006).

28.  Plaintiff's need for a Declaratory Judgment is urgent. Based on the above facts, a
request by the Emergency Manager to proceed under Chapter 9 is imminent, because he has credibly
threatened — indeed, has given every indication — that he intends to impair or diminish accrued
pension benefits in contravention of Article IX Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution, and that
Chapter 9 bankruptcy proceedings are the mechanism by which he can do so. Thus Plaintiff's’ rights

under the Michigan Constitution not to have their pension benefits “diminished or impaired” can
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only be guaranteed if this Court acts before the Governor approves a request to proceed under
Chapter 9. Moreover, Emergency Manager Orr’s threats that he will unconstitutionally diminish or
impair Plaintiffs’ vested pension rights have themselves harmed Plaintiffs by instilling in Plaintiffs a
reasonable fear that their constitutional rights will be trampled upon and, in the process, their future
source of income drastically eroded.

29. Accordingly, Plaintiffs are entitled to a speedy hearing under MCR 2.605(D) on their
request for declaratory relief.

COUNT II: PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

30.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 29 above.

31.  Plaintiffs will suffer irreparable harm if Defendants Snyder and Dillon are not
enjoined from authorizing the Emergency Manager to proceed under Chapter 9 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code and thereby seeking to abrogate Plaintiffs’ rights under the Michigan Constitution
and the source of livelihood it guarantees them in a forum which the Emergency Manager contends
does not protect those rights.

32.  The harm to Plaintiffs absent injunctive relief outweighs the harm to Defendants if an
injunction is granted because the Governor and Treasurer will not be harmed if they are enjoined
from authorizing the Emergency Manager to file under Chapter 9.

33.  Plaintiffs are likely to succeed on the merits.

34,  There will be harm to the public interest absent an injunction, as the accrued vested
pension rights of thousands of City of Detroit retirees and employees will be threatened with

abrogation in violation of the Michigan Constitution.
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RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Honorable Court grant the following

relief:

A. A declaratory judgment that PA 436 is unconstitutional in violation of Article IX
Section 24 of the Michigan Constitution.

B. A preliminary and/or permanent injunction enjoining Defendant Snyder and
Defendant Dillon from authorizing the Detroit Emergency Manager to commence
proceedings under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

C. An award to Plaintiffs of their costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred
in this action.

Respectfully submitted,

McKNIGHT, McCLOW, CANZANO,
SMITH & RAPTKE, P.Co

Allnrm s for P
400 Gélleria Oﬁlcenm’: Suite 117
Southfield, MI 48034
248-354-9650
jcanzano@michworklaw.com

By: ,ﬁx(\ A %__
T n\ynmn

Date: July 3, 2013

VERIFICATION

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

John R. Canzano, being first duly sworn, deposes and states he is the attorney representing

Plaintiffs herein; that he has read the foregoing verified complaint by him subscribed for and on
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behalf of Plaintiffs; that he knows the contents thereof to be true except as to those matters stated
upon information and belief, and as to those matters, he believes them to be true, and he is
authorized to sign said Verified Complaint on hehalf of I’hiljtiﬂ‘q.

(” (‘1//«}

J ol\naR Canzano

Subscribed and sworn to befo :'K (nc llh rd day of J 2013

Karen Ann Purslow, Notary Publlc
County of Oakland, State of Michigan
My Commission Expires: April 19, 2014
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